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IDENTIFICATION 

Property Name (if any): Washington School      

Address: 543 Park Avenue            

Date of Construction: c. 1889      City, County: Park City, Summit County, Utah  

Architect/Builder, if known: unknown     Tax Number: WSI-1      

Current Owner: Washington School House LLC  

Legal Description (include acreage): WASHINGTON SCHOOL INN REPLAT; ACCORDING TO THE OFFICIAL 

PLAT ON FILE IN THE SUMMIT COUNTY RECORDERS OFFICE CONT 13,120 SQ FT OR 0.30 AC 1998-383 

(1999-1389) 

 

STATUS / USE 

Original Use: institutional school Current Use: commercial hotel   

Property Type:   National Register of Historic Places:  Evaluation:   

 Building    Eligible      Landmark Site 

 Structure    Ineligible      Significant Site                 

  Site     Listed, Date:     Non Historic   

           12/8/1978 – Individually listed 

DOCUMENTATION 

Photographs:   Research Sources: 

 Tax Photos    Sanborn Maps  City/ County Histories  Newspapers  

 Prints:    tax Card   Personal Interviews   Other: 

 Historic    Census Records  Park City Museum 
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DESCRIPTION 

Architectural Style: School type          

No. Stories: 2     

Number of Associated Structures:   Accessory building(s). #   Structure(s). #  

Condition:   Good   Fair    Poor   Uninhabitable/Ruin 

Location:  Original location  Moved (Date: ,original location:  ) 

Materials: (Describe the visible materials)  

Exterior Walls: Stone     

Foundation: Stone      

Roof: Cross-wing roof form sheathed in Wooden shingles         

Windows/Doors: Four-over-four double-hung sash type, small one-over-one double-hung sash type in paired 

or grouped     

Additions:     Major   Minor   None 

Alterations:   Major   Minor   None      

Describe Additions/ Alterations (Dates):   

 

Essential Historic Form:  Retains       Does Not Retain 

 

NARRATIVE DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY 

(Briefly describe the property and its setting. Include a verbal description of the location; a general description of 

the property including the overall shape, number of stories, architectural style, materials, shape of roof; identify and 

describe any associated structures; identify any known exterior additions and/or alterations.) 

 

The Washington School House Hotel was described in the 1978 National Register nomination form as follows: 

 

“The basic plan of the George Washington Schoolhouse is a "T" plan built in stone. It is a split level structure rising 

to a height of two full story’s at the main elevation and one and one half at the rear. Three wings extend from the 

central block on both sides and the front.  

 

The plot is located on a slope which causes the split leveling. The basement, done in cut stone, is partial, only 

extending under [the front section of the building]. The exterior wall material is also cut stone and is a combination 
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of broken course and composition coursing. The texture of the stone is hammered or tooled. In the exterior wall of 

the main façade there is a date stone which reads "Public School District No. 12, 1889."  

 

The total roof shape is a "T" gable covered with wood (probably cedar) shingles. There are three interior chimneys 

which are centrally located at the end of [the wings.] These are single units made of brick. There are several 

dormer windows of pediment shape and having windows of the "four sash with mullions" type. The eaves are done 

in wood which projects and have no exposed rafters. The raking is a wood fascia and frieze with no special 

features.  

 

The main windows on the first floor are flat two sash (double hung) with a plain lintel. There are no side elements, 

but the sill is of lugsill type. Both lintel and sill are done in smoothly cut stone. The second floor windows are two 

sash with one upper and one lower. There are two circular windows in the uppermost story of section two.  

 

There are two identical doors, one main and one secondary, located off-center on the main floor. Their structural 

openings are flat with plain, cut stone surround heads and sides. The architrave type is plain with embrasure. The 

side panels are recessed on both sides and the transom panels are plain and recessed. The doors are double, four 

panel doors, and the panels are recessed with moulded railings. The glazing on the door was undeterminable.  

 

The location of the main staircase is at the main door. They extend straight from the main door parallel to the 

exterior wall from a low porch supported by wooden blocks.  

 

One of the more interesting features of the building is the centrally located bell tower which is square in shape, 

supported at four corners by wood columns having bracketed eaves and scroll worked corner brackets. Topping 

the steep cupola roof is a flag pole which could be original. The sides of the cupola below the roof are open at this 

time and the bell has been removed.” 

 

Minor changes have been made since the writing of this description. The building was vacant and in slight disrepair 

at that time, but has since come under new ownership and converted into a bed and breakfast and repaired. The 

roofing has been changed from the shingled material to a standing seam metal. The overall form and materiality of 

the building remains intact and the building retains its historic value. 

 

SIGNIFICANCE 

Historic Era: 

 Settlement & Mining Boom Era (1868-1893) 

 Mature Mining Era (1894-1930) 

 Mining Decline & Emergence of Recreation Industry (1931-1962) 

 

Narrative Statement of Significance: 

(Briefly describe those characteristics by which this property may be considered historically significant.)  
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The history of this building was detailed in the 1978 National Register nomination form as follows: 

 

“The Washington School, constructed in 1889 of limestone quarried at Peoa, Utah is the remaining structure of the 

three public schools constructed in Park City in the late nineteenth century that followed the "ward school" concept. 

In addition, the structure is one of the few remaining buildings which survived the Great Fire of June 19, 1898. 

 

HISTORY 

 

Park City, Utah, quickly became one of the leading and most profitable argentiferous lead mining areas in the 

world. The initial discover date is cited as 1868, but it was the Ontario Mine, sold to George Hearst in 1872, that 

initiated efforts to mine lode ores and acted as the catalyst for Park City's reputation as a bonanza camp. The 

district grew rapidly attracting a diverse population, with commercial and social activity centered in the town of 

Park City. 

 

The increase in population and prosperity affected Park City's development from a settlement, to a camp, and 

finally to a town. Within such a framework of development the social environment underwent changes, with various 

aspects of that environment needing attention. Education, practically from the outset, became of particular 

importance.  

 

The first educational efforts in Park City culminated in the establishment of the Ontario School, in 1875. Other 

reports indicate that earlier in the winter of 1875, John L. Street and George C. Snyder sponsored a school taught 

by Dominic Dignan; followed by the Ontario School, which was supported by subscriptions from the Ontario 

miners, and also from donations. Following closely were other schools sponsored by the Catholic Church, 

Congregational Church and the Public Free School No. 12. 

 

The 1870's and 1880's proved a difficult period for public schools in Park City. Tax measures to aid public 

education were voted down and in addition, the presence of other schools, Saint Mary's (Catholic) and the Park 

Academy (Congregational), created alternatives to public education. The Free School was originally run by the 

New West Education Commission, Congregational Church, but sponsorship was later dropped because of financial 

difficulties. The church shortly ‘thereafter sponsored the Park Academy. In 1883 citizens voted down a school tax 

levy; children were to be sent to either Saint Mary's (still remaining) or the Park Academy.’ ” 

 

 

The building is currently owned by the Washington School House LLC. 
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PHOTOS 

(Provide several clear historical and current photos of the property as well as locational maps indicating the 

location of the property in relation to streets or other widely recognized features.) 

 

.  
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543 Park Avenue. Northeast oblique. November 2013 
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543 Park Avenue. East elevation. November 2013. 
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543 Park Avenue. Southeast oblique. November 2013. 
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